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P R O C E E D I N G S 

  MR. JACOBS:  Good morning everyone.  Again my 

name is Aaron Jacobs, and I am the Procurement Officer 

for the Maryland Health Benefit Exchange for this 

solicitation specifically.  First I would like to review 

some of the logistics of the RFP prior to opening the 

floor up for questions to the subject matter experts.  

Please make sure to leave your business cards at the back 

of the table if you have them.  It would help if we need 

to clarify any signatures on the sign-in sheets.  I would 

appreciate that.  Let me also start with requesting that 

after this conference, if you still have any remaining 

questions, please make sure that any questions that you 

ask today or have in your mind prior to the deadline, 

please submit them to the hix.procurement@maryland.gov  

e-mail address prior to 2 p.m., May 20, 2015, so that we 

can respond in writing and post your answers no later 

than 5 p.m., on May 21, 2015 on both the Maryland Health 

Benefit Exchange as well as the eMaryland Marketplace.  

Questions e-mailed after the allotted times will not be 

addressed. 
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  I would like to review the key information 

which in the RFP is Table 1 on page 7.   

  Today is the 18th, and we're currently at the 

Pre-Proposal Conference.  The RFPs are due no later than 

May 26th, prior to 12 p.m., Eastern Standard Time.  And 

it is recommended that you hand-deliver your proposals to 

assure timely receipts.  You may receive a receipt, if 

you request one.  Again, no RFPs will be accepted after 

12 p.m., on that date and time, and there will not be an 

extension of the RFP due date.    

  In review, the key information summary states 

that this solicitation is the Information Technology 

IDIQ, Consulting Technical Support Services, IDQ being 

Indefinite Delivery, Indefinite Quantities. 

  The method of procurement.  This is a 

competitive sealed proposal.  The issue date was 

May 12, 2013 [sic].  We opened our date for questions on 

the following day, May 13, 2015.   

  As stated, we're at day 18th now at the  

Pre-Proposal Conference, and our closing date for 

questions will be May 20, 2015, at 2 p.m., Eastern 
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Standard Time.  Final questions will be answered and 

posted by May 21st at 5 p.m., Eastern Standard Time.  The 

closing date and time of this solicitation is May 26, 

2015, at 12 p.m., Eastern Standard Time.  We anticipate 

that the contract will be awarded by June 27, 2015.  The 

anticipated start date for the work would be July 1, 

2015.  We have not established a minority business goal 

for this solicitation.  We've conducted an internal 

evaluation of this solicitation and what our needs are, 

and we made that determination in accordance with the 

GOMA requirements.  The GOMA being the Governor's Office 

of Minority Affairs.   

  I am the Procurement Officer, Aaron Jacobs,  

and I am located at 750 East Pratt Street, 16th Floor, 

Baltimore, Maryland, 21202. My direct number is (410) 

547-1831, and e-mail is at hix.procurement@maryland.gov.   

E-mail inquiries are preferred at this e-mail address 

because I believe most of you will see that I answer your 

e-mails very, very quickly to the best of my abilities.  

  The Contract Monitor to my right and your left 

is Subramanian Muniasamy.  He is our Chief Information 
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Officer for the Agency, and his e-mail is as his name, 

subramanian.muniasamy@maryland.gov. 

  To my left and your right is Jon Evans, and he 

is a key member of our IT Team, and he will be also 

working on this contract and overseeing the work as well. 

  Proposals are to be sent via mail or hand-

delivered to the Maryland Health Benefit Exchange at the 

address stated.  Be -- specifically make sure you add the 

16th Floor.  There are a number of businesses in the 

building, and there is a two-stage process for  

getting to our office.  To my attention, and e-mail the 

electronic versions to the same e-mail address, 

hix.procurement@maryland.gov. 

  The Agency may or may not schedule or take oral 

presentations for the finalists selected.  The intent is 

to award this contract by June 17, 2015, and, of course 

these dates are subject to change given any unforeseen 

circumstances. 

  The governance of our Agency, the Maryland 

Health Benefit Exchange and its procurement policies are 

governed by a Board of Trustees that mandate that our 
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procurement policies promote public confidence that 

insures fair and equitable treatment of persons and 

entities and fostering appropriate competition that 

promotes economic efficiency in order to achieve the 

maximum benefit from the Exchange's purchasing power.   

  I want to talk a little bit about process and 

etiquette.  At any time an offeror is not to contact any 

State officials on their behalf regarding the 

solicitation, and that the answers given at a Pre-

Proposal Conference are non-binding.  Per the schedule 

again answers to questions received by the due date and 

time will be posted on eMaryland Market and the MHB 

website on the procurement page along with any 

amendments.  Regarding the proposal submission 

requirements, each offeror's proposal shall comprise of 

two volumes:  

Volume 1, the technical proposal; and Volume 2, the 

financial proposal.  Each offeror shall submit the 

technical proposal and the financial proposal even if you 

are proposing multiple functional areas.  That's one, one 

of each.  Not multiple proposals addressing different 
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areas.  Both volumes shall be clearly marked using the 

following naming convention: contractor name, underscore, 

MHB space IDIQ, underscore, technical proposal.  For your 

financial proposal, the contractor name, underscore, MHBE 

space IDIQ, underscore, financial proposal.  Required 

delivery methods.  Both volumes shall be delivered via  

e-mail the hix.procurement@maryland.gov and mailed or 

hand-delivered to the Maryland Health Benefit Exchange  

at the address stated, to my attention, by 12 p.m.,  

May 26th, in order to be considered.  For electronic 

submissions, the electronic versions of the technical 

proposal shall be provided in MS Word format.  An 

electronic version of the financial proposal shall be 

provided in M Excel, MS Excel format and another version 

shall be provided signed in PDF format. 

  In addition to the e-mail submissions offerors 

shall provide five hard copies of the technical proposal 

in a sealed package comprising of one unbound original so 

marked containing a signed transmittal letter and four 

additional copies.  Offerors shall also simultaneous 

provide in a separate sealed package one hard copy of the 
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signed financial proposal.  The outsides of both packages 

shall each be marked with the RFP title and number, name 

and address of the offeror, the volume number, one or 

two, and closing date and time for receipt of those 

proposals.  And, again, if you want a receipt on a 

delivery, we, we'll be glad to provide you one. 

  For Public Information Act requirements we ask 

that you include in your respective packages a CD 

containing an MS Word version of each that has been 

redacted to remove any information that offerors 

considers confidential under the Maryland Public 

Information Act.  The volumes on the CD shall be marked 

using the following naming convention: contractor name, 

underscored, MHBE space IDIQ, underscore, technical 

proposal, in parentheses PIA copy.  Financial proposal 

will be contractor name, underscore, MHBE, underscore, 

IDIQ, underscore, financial proposal.   

  Page number requirements.  All pages of both 

proposal volumes shall be consecutively numbered from 

beginning 1 of X to the end, page X of X.   

  If you choose to mail your hard copy 
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submissions, please allow sufficient mail delivery time 

to ensure timely receipt by the established deadline in 

order to be considered.  RFR optional response 

submissions.  Please note that submission requirements 

for the RFR optional responses are contained in each 

individual RFR.  MHBE requires RFR, RFR being Requests 

for Resumes, responses via e-mail only.  RFR responses 

should not be included in a offeror's technical proposal 

or financial proposal for this RFP. 

  A transmittal letter shall accompany the 

technical proposal.  The transmittal letter shall be 

prepared on the contractor's business stationery.  This 

letter is not included in your 25-page limit for the 

technical proposal. 

  The purpose of your transmittal letter is to 

transmit the technical proposal and acknowledge the 

receipt of any amendments to the RFP.  Therefore, it 

should be brief.  The letter shall be signed by an 

individual who is authorized to bind the firm to all 

statements including services and prices contained in the 

proposal.  Oral or faxed proposals will not be accepted. 
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Proposals or unsolicited amendments to proposals arriving 

after the closing time and date will not be considered. 

  Failure to follow these instructions and those 

outlined in all of Section 4.0, the Requirements of 

Proposal Submission, may result in having the 

contractor's proposal deemed unacceptable or classified 

as not reasonably susceptible of being selected for 

award. 

  At this time, if -- don't have anything else to 

add, I'd like to open up the floor to questions regarding 

the solicitation. 

  Hi. 

  MS. DRAVIDA:  Hi.  My name is Jessica Dravida 

from Dravida Consulting.  I just had a question on the 

RFR submissions.  Am I correct that you would like those 

also in two volumes or -- normally they're in two 

volumes, but I just wanted to clarify.  Would they also 

be a technical and a financial proposal separately or 

would you like them as one? 

  MR. EVANS:  The RFRs themselves?  

  MS. DRAVIDA:  Yeah, the RFR submission being 
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separate from the primary solicitation submission.  I 

just wanted to clarify that that would also be a 

technical proposal and a financial proposal e-mailed 

separately. 

  MR. JACOBS:  Should they --  so should they be 

separate or as -- 

  MR. EVANS:  They're, they're listed as optional 

for the technical proposal. 

  MR. DRAVIDA:  Yes. 

  MR. EVANS:  So you don't need to put them in 

there.  They don't count as part of the 25-page 

submission. 

  MS. DRAVIDA:  Correct. 

  MR. EVANS:  They can be e-mailed preferably to 

hix.procurement@maryland.gov. 

  MS. DRAVIDA:  Okay.  And that's the financial  

-- that specific RFR. 

  MR. EVANS:  Financial RFR?  Or do you mean the 

financial -- 

  MS. DRAVIDA:  I mean the specific rate -- 

  MR. EVANS:  -- document. 
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  MS. DRAVIDA:  -- are you going to just take 

that off of the master?  Normally we, we submit a 

specific rate for that particular resume.  So I was just 

wondering if it was a separate financial proposal or 

could we simply append that. 

  MR. EVANS:  I think you should -- you want to 

append that? 

  MR. JACOBS:  That's fine, that's fine.  

  MS. DRAVIDA:  Okay.  Sorry for the -- 

  MR. JACOBS:  Have no problem doing that. 

  MS. DRAVIDA: -- they were asking. 

  MR. JACOBS:  Yeah. 

  MS. DRAVIDA:  Thank you.   

  UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  I'm sorry.  What was the 

answer to that? 

  MR. EVANS:  The answer was append the rate for 

the, for the individual to the RFR itself. 

  UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Okay. 

  MR. EVANS:  To the resume itself. 

  MS. DRAVIDA:  Thank you. 

  MR. JACOBS:  Sure. 

FREE STATE REPORTING, INC. 
Court Reporting  Transcription 

D.C. Area 301-261-1902 
Balt. & Annap. 410-974-0947 



                                                   16                           

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

 

 

  Next question.  Yes.  Could you please state 

your name? 

  MR. DORRIS:  Damion Dorris with ARMA.  Is the 

RFR request is that the first task order?  Is that, is 

that a -- request because I know it's optional so -- 

  MR. EVANS:  So the RF, the optional attachment 

for the actual technical proposal, does it need to be 

submitted?  The RFRs that we're looking for, the resumes 

themselves, are what we're doing as a staffing for this 

contract.  So those can be submitted separately. 

  MR. DORRIS:  To add onto that, if you don't 

submit them, do we have a chance later on to submit for 

those? 

  MR. EVANS:  As long as they're submitted prior 

to the close of the contract award date, prior to the 

submission date.  So you, if you're submitting the 

technical proposal, for example on the contract in your 

financial proposal by the 26th, I believe. 

  MR. JACOBS:  Correct. 

  MR. EVANS:  We need, so we need the resumes at 

that, by that time as well.  They don't have to be in the 
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same package. 

  MR. JACOBS:  Damion, did that answer your 

question? 

  MR. DORRIS:  Kind of.  Well, what I'm trying to 

-- what are the advantages of submitting and not 

submitting the resumes? 

  MR. MUNIASAMY:  Me to -- 

  MR. JACOBS:  Sure. 

  MR. MUNIASAMY:  Yes.  Right now the RFR is -- 

so whoever is submitting the resume along with the 

response and we are going to evaluate that, and we are 

going to hire those people. 

  MR. DORRIS:  Okay. 

  MR. MUNIASAMY:  Okay.  In future to answer 

second part of the question, in future you will get a 

chance.  That chance will be a separate task order -- due 

to some reason somebody left or we got additional 

department to implement, that time we are going to issue 

a new RFR, and that time you will have a chance. 

  MR. DORRIS:  Got you. 

  MR. JACOBS:  Question?  Yes. 
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  MR. VALDIVIESO:  Luis from Gantech.  So because 

of -- there's so many of them separately do you have to 

win the master contract in order to get, to get someone 

on the RFR?  I would assume so, but -- 

  MR. MUNIASAMY:  This time this evaluation -- 

okay.  Let me just clarify that.  This time we just 

combine these two things together.  That is why there are 

some few confusions around.  The reason is we are running 

out of time, and also there are certain process we need 

to follow -- to evaluate -- the Board and then get it -- 

because of that, what we decided is we will just put 

together both in one shot so that you will have an 

opportunity to submit, and we will just evaluate 

together.  

  MS. LIPPMAN:  I have a question.  I'm Anne from 

ALTEK, President and CEO.  When, when we read the 

proposal we read it like a staff augmentation contingent 

labor proposal until we get to past performance.  And 

then in past performance, it reads like a project firm.  

So my company is a contingent labor staffing firm with a 

niche in health information technology.  So when we look 
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at all of those RFRs we go we could fill every single one 

of those if we had time to put it -- real people in a 

template form and have them actually sign that.  So if we 

want to -- are you looking for consulting firms to do -- 

projects or are you looking for IT staffing firms that 

can help you find qualified candidates for those RFRs? 

  MR. MUNIASAMY:  Right now -- 

  MS. LIPPMAN:  Second question. 

  MR. MUNIASAMY:  Yes. 

  MS. LIPPMAN:  Go with that is if the -- because 

we don't really see the timeframe being -- it's too, it's 

too tight for those RFRs.  I mean that requires a great 

deal of recruiting effort even though I have seven 

recruiters.  So if we responded to the technical proposal 

but didn't respond to the RFRs it sounds like you would 

still -- that those companies would still have an 

opportunity to staff. 

  MR. MUNIASAMY:  It's a difference.  To answer 

the first question, right now this solicitation is purely 

based on this, the staff augmentation.  So in future can 

it change to how -- like how -- project on its own?  
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Probably, yes.  But right now it is clearly for the staff 

augmentation.  And those staffs will be managed by our 

MHBE supervisors directly.  And we are responsible for 

the -- of the project.  So what was your second question?  

I'm sorry. 

  MS. LIPPMAN:  Well, I guess we read it right 

because we read it like it's staff augmentation.  But the 

past performance you're, you're asking for project based 

work like did you come in on time, under budget?  If we 

as a staff augmentation company were to answer that 

question, we would say we placed -- developers or, you 

know -- people on a project, but we didn't do the whole 

project.  Can we answer it that way? 

  MR. MUNIASAMY:  Got, got it. Actually you can, 

as long as you can provide some kind of performance, yes.  

This candidate has been staffed in X, Y, Z project and he 

was on the project for so many years, for so many months, 

whatever.  That level is good enough for this, this 

response. 

  MS. LIPPMAN:  So my, my second part of my 

question was I really, I mean I've been doing this for a 
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long time.  So the RFRs require a great deal of 

recruiting effort.  If you really wanted real people for 

those RFRs, which you do, it, it would, you would have to 

extend the date past the 26th. 

  MR. MUNIASAMY:  I -- 

  MS. LIPPMAN:  Are you amenable to that? 

  MR. MUNIASAMY:  We, okay.  The -- IDIQ is 

coming to the end on 6/30.  So we are really, did our 

level best to bring this RFP out on time.  So I 

completely hear you what you are saying.  So we will -- 

  MS. LIPPMAN:  Actually since it's a holiday 

weekend and a lot of people that are gone. 

  MR. MUNIASAMY:  Yeah.  We will make a note of 

it.  And right now I would say we are not -- we don't 

have any plan to extend the deadline, but in case where 

we are having some additional discussion with the 

management internally in case there is any change, we'll 

post it. 

  MS. MCBETH:  Hi. Tynnetta McBeth with TMCS.  I 

understand this is a staff augmentation IDIQ, but with 

that said, are any of these, are all of these positions 
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for onsite Monday through Friday eight to five or will 

some of the positions be for example shared positions -- 

disaster recovery expert.  Is there a requirement to have 

one onsite all the time or would it be like project based 

and then this person may be needed 10 hours for this 

project this month or 10 hours for this project this 

week, et cetera?  Which way do we proceed? 

  MR. MUNIASAMY:  All the staffs are required to 

serve 40 hours per week onsite. 

  MS. MCBETH:  Okay.  Thank you. 

  MR. GARMELLA:  Prasad from International 

Software Systems. 

  MR. JACOBS:  Can you speak up, please? 

  MR. GARMELLA:  As for the -- you said you can 

submit for all the 10 labor categories -- 10 labor 

categories.  Do we have any sort of a specific template 

which -- we can submit our -- 

  MR. MUNIASAMY:  I believe we provided the 

template along with the RFP.  And can you please help me 

out, Jon? 

  MR. EVANS:   Yeah.  Look at the attachments.  I 
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think it's Attachment I. 

  MR. MUNIASAMY:  K. 

  UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  K. 

  MR. EVANS:  That has a listing. 

  MR. MUNIASAMY:  There is one question from that 

corner.  Do you have -- 

  MR. WILBON:  Brian Wilbon with Optum.  Just to 

clarify the back and forth on the RFRs, would there be a 

consideration that the proposals are due by the 26th, but 

could there be an extension with the timeline to submit 

resumes for the RFRs? 

  MR. MUNIASAMY:  Right now we are not planning 

for any extension as I, as pointed to -- I'm sorry. 

  MS. LIPPMAN:  Anne. 

  MR. MUNIASAMY:  Anne.  Okay.  So that is why we 

are planning for whatever the whatever, whatever the 

timeline we -- at this point we are going to stick to it.  

In case we are going to take that back and we'll discuss 

in case there is any change to that, we'll post it. 

  MR. JACOBS:  Sir. 

  MR. MARCELL:  Mike from K2.  Are we okay having 
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a team response to this IDIQ or is it only looking for 

one organization to respond to one particular location or 

many different, the 10 areas?  Can we put a team together 

to respond to this whole thing? 

  MR. MUNIASAMY:  Team together?  You mean like 

more than one company? 

  MR. MARCELL:  Yes. 

  MR. MUNIASAMY:  Join hands and submit the 

response? 

  MR. MARCELL:  Yes.  To join hands, have one 

prime and team member -- 

  MR. MUNIASAMY:  Oh, that is a good question.  

Let me take it back -- exactly.  So this is kind of like 

a staff augmentation.  To be honest we are not mentally 

prepared to answer that, but we'll make a note of that 

question.   

  MR. MARCELL:  Okay. 

  MR. MUNIASAMY:  Thank you. 

  MR. EVANS:  That's a good question. 

  MR. JACOBS:  Sir. 

  UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  The RFRs in Attachment K 
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are those to replace incumbent positions that are already 

in, in task and at your agency? 

  MR. MUNIASAMY:  That is correct.  This is not a 

new position, but -- new, new work we got this is kind of 

like we want to go with some company to -- to save some 

cost. 

  UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  So you've already, 

you've already got people -- 

  MR. MUNIASAMY:  Correct. 

  UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  -- performing the duties 

that are in the RFR for Attachment K.  You're just 

looking to replace them because those contracts are 

ending -- 

  MR. MUNIASAMY:  Correct. 

  MR. JACOBS:  June 30th. 

  MS. MCBETH:  Tynnetta McBeth, again, TMCS.  Can 

you all share the incumbent's name for that current 

contract? 

  MR. JACOBS:  The, the incumbents are all listed 

on our agency website under past awards for each 

contract.  If you scroll down the page beyond the current 
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solicitations, you'll see a whole history of our prior 

contract awardees.  And I believe you'll see it listed 

from June 2014, about I think it's like six.  About six, 

yeah. 

  MR. MUNIASAMY:  Yes. 

  MR. JACOBS:  Yes. 

  MR. PALANIAPPAN:  Hi, this is Chandra 

Palaniappan from Cognizant Technology Solutions.  Just 

follow-up to his question.  If you are replacing the 

incumbent are you going to arrange the, the -- and how, 

how is that going to be managed? 

  MR. MUNIASAMY:  Yes, we do have a knowledge 

transition session.  It's not like a three-months.  It's 

maybe going to be like a one-week -- one or two weeks, 

absolutely, yes. 

  MR. PALANIAPPAN:  So are you expecting to have 

this, the folks is going to becoming new in the premises 

along with the, the incumbent to, to do that -- 

  MR. MUNIASAMY:  Yes. 

  MR. PALANIAPPAN:  Okay 

  MR. MUNIASAMY:  Yes, absolutely.  We make sure 
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the new people who are landing are properly trained to 

perform the task according to the needs of the -- 

  MR. PALANIAPPAN:  Which means that it will be 

like a priority to -- these, these works will be onsite? 

  MR. MUNIASAMY:  No.  This new one will come 

only on July 1st, and in case if it is needed, we will 

extend the previous one so that the people can do the -- 

yes.  But this is purely for July 1st. 

  MR. PALANIAPPAN:  Thank you. 

  MR. EVANS:  Yes. 

  MR. CORNELIUS:  Yes.  Good morning.  Craig 

Cornelius with Eventus Solutions Group.  There's a 

statement in the proposal that offerors may propose to 

participate in one or many or all functional areas.  But 

then later on there's a requesting for pricing every 

labor category that's, that's listed in Attachment F1, 

the financial proposal.  Some of the labor categories 

don't appear to apply to some of the functional areas.  

And so just trying to get clarification.  When we're a 

firm that specializes in certain expertise and would 

likely propose only on a few of the functional areas.  It 
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wouldn't be natural for us to propose for labor 

categories -- 

  MR. MUNIASAMY:  All the -- 

  MR. CORNELUS:  -- for every labor category 

listed there, yes. 

  MR. MUNIASAMY:  The idea behind that is so if 

you are a firm now maybe like down the line after a year 

or so if you found the right candidate probably you can 

just lump that along with your -- you can expand your 

company.  So from our perspective, so whoever is having 

that kind direct knowledge that will give some kind of 

added advantage to, to the evaluation criteria.  

Sometimes it may be easy to deal with one vendor.  

Sometimes it is good to deal with multiple vendors.  So 

that is the reason like we put the RFP in that fashion.   

  Aaron or Jon, do you have any -- 

  MR. EVANS:  Yeah. 

  MR. MUNIASAMY:  -- additional comment on that? 

  MR. EVANS:  We had a previous discussion with 

our leadership about whether or not we wanted the 

offerors to only put in what they were interested in 
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bidding on, and our legal advice was that we need to 

require the vendors to fill in every single labeled 

category, even if they're not going to be bidding it, but 

we, we need to know that ahead of time for, for your 

benefit, for our benefit, for the whole contract award.  

It's required. 

  MR. MUNIASAMY:  Yes, please 

  MR. MARCELL:  For that pricing so that would be 

the -- I'm sorry, Mike from K2.  That would be the 

maximum rate for that category for the rest of the, you 

know, per year for that, for that area.  So you would be 

submitting task orders after that where we would be 

bidding against another organization and staying below 

from probably providing discounts whatever to that rate, 

correct? 

  MR. EVANS:  Correct. 

  MR. MARCELL:  So that's a maximum -- 

  MR. EVANS:  Correct. 

  MR. MARCELL:  Okay.  And from that you would be 

planning to have multiple awards per functional area of 

the 10 areas? 
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  MR. EVANS:  Depending on the requirements.  

There might be one award in one area and six awards in 

another area. 

  MR. MARCELL:  Thank you. 

  MS. DUMONT:  Debra Dumont from ZDAAS.  I've got 

two areas to cover.  One is about the -- more 

administrative submission of the documents.  It states 

that you want an Excel, in Excel format the financial 

volume.  And I'm used to putting it into a Word document.  

Are you saying that you literally want the Excel filed 

only and no cover, et cetera, or are you saying it's okay 

to use a Word document that -- 

  MR. EVANS:  We want, we want the Excel. 

  MS. DUMONT:  You want the Excel.  No cover, no 

cover -- 

  MR. EVANS:  Required.  That's required. 

  MS. DUMONT:  -- no volume, okay, no volume 

cover, okay.  Got that then.  And on the past performance 

criteria that you, that you've asked for, on the terms 

just for definition sake for myself, satisfaction, the 

type, the type, is that start and finish date is the type 
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of contract and the start to finish on it?  Is that what 

your considered terms -- does that encompass all that you 

consider when you say terms of the contract?  I don't 

want to define it myself -- 

  MR. EVANS:  What section are you referring to? 

  MS. DUMONT:  It's the 4.1.1.5, Past 

Performance, and you detail the, the data that you're 

requesting for past performance information, and it's 

under (D)iv, the term of the contract.  I just want to 

make sure that I'm really clear on what you're asking 

for. 

  UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Okay, yeah, that's -- 

  MS. DUMONT:  You know firm fixed price or, you 

know, cost plus or -- 

  MR. EVANS:  So for safety's sake can we take 

that question and say that we'll address it? 

  MS. DUMONT:  Yes, absolutely. 

  MR. JACOBS:  Make sure you e-mail me.  Make 

sure you e-mail me that question, if you have not already 

done so. 

  MS. DUMONT:  And also you're not asking for a 
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contract number and that just concerns me.  I mean title 

is good, but do you want the contract number -- don't 

want to throw in more than you've asked for and get my 

little hand slapped. 

  MR. EVANS:  We're not going to slap your hand 

for providing us more information. 

  MS. DUMONT:  Okay.  You never know. 

  MR. JACOBS:  Page count, not letter count. 

  UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Right. 

  MS. DUMONT:  Then I'm assuming, I've covered 

the cover on the technical response doesn't count on the 

25-page count? 

  MR. JACOBS:  The transmittal, no.  No. 

  MS. DUMONT:  And then 25 does that include the 

forms attachments or no?  Because that's not spelled out. 

  UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  You mean -- 

  MS. DUMONT:  The forms that are required in the 

technical response.  So am I to count the number of pages 

of those? 

  UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  They're your forms. 

  MS. DUMONT:  They're your forms. 
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  UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  We just want -- their 

submission is all we're counting, not our attachments. 

  UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Right.   

  MS. DUMONT:  None of your attachments? 

  UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  None of our attachments. 

  UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  No, that's -- 

  MS. DUMONT:  That's been transcribed for us.  

Thank you.  And then I'm the newbie to the company.  

Pardon me. 

  MR. JACOBS:  That's fine. 

  MS. DUMONT:  The eMaryland number is that the 

vendor number when you hop on eMaryland? 

  MR. JACOBS:  eMaryland number that the -- I 

need to confirm that so -- 

  (Simultaneous comments.) 

  MR. JACOBS:  -- yeah, I saw that, I saw that 

question. 

  MS. DUMONT:  It does not say this is --  

  MR. JACOBS:  You mean for the vendor? 

  MS. DUMONT:  Yes, yes. 

  MR. JACOBS:  Okay, okay.  We'll confirm that 
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for you. 

  MS. DUMONT:  And it's also in one of the 

contracts.  Your EMM identification number.  So I'm 

assuming that's the vendor number as it's described on -- 

  MR. JACOBS:  I'll, I'll confirm that for you, 

and I may actually, don't be surprised if I say you're 

going to confirm that with eMaryland if I can't because 

that's -- I don't want to miss -- I don't want to give 

you the wrong information, but I'll, I'll confirm that 

with my staff. 

  MS. DUMONT:  Okay.  Thank you very much. 

  MR. JACOBS:  Um-hum.  Yes, sir. 

  UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  There are two areas 

within the RFP that denote something but does not have a 

description.  One ends up being in the technical proposal 

off of page 43, 4.1.1, that lays out what needs to be 

included.   Offeror general information.  There is no 

corresponding description for what you want there.  And, 

second, is on the pricing sheets you have four labor 

categories dealing with I believe it's 

telecommunications.  Yet there is no descriptions in 
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Attachment D. 

  MR. EVANS:  Okay.  The general information was 

give us general information about the company.  So it was 

-- we don't know who you are or what you do or your 

basis.  As far as Attachment D, I'm not sure about that 

one. 

  MR. JACOBS:  No, he said there's -- 

  UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  There were four labor 

categories that are in the pricing sheet that are not in 

the descriptions. 

  MR. JACOBS:  Okay. 

  UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  The attachment. 

  MR. JACOBS:  Okay. 

  UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  They are the four 

telecommunications labor categories. 

  MR. JACOBS:  You sent that question in, didn't 

you? 

  UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Yes, sir. 

  MR. JACOBS:  We have that question? 

  MR. EVANS:  We have that? 

  MR. JACOBS:  Yes, we do. 
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  MR. EVANS:  We'll address that. 

  UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Okay. 

  MS. MCBETH:  Address it in that it will be 

pulled out or address it -- 

  MR. EVANS:  We'll answer the question. 

  MR. JACOBS:  We're going to answer the question 

and -- 

  MS. MCBETH:  Oh, okay. 

  MR. JACOBS:  -- post it.  Yes.  I distinctly 

remember his question yesterday. 

  Yes, sir. 

  MR. DORRIS:  Damion with ARMA.  How many master 

contract awards are you guys anticipating? 

  MR. EVANS:  As many as we need. 

  MR. DORRIS:  Okay. 

  MR. CORNELIUS:  Craig Cornelius with Eventus 

Solutions Group.  Service center technologies such as 

CRM, ACD, IBR, CPI, they weren't explicitly called out in 

the RFP.  I wanted to confirm that they are within the 

scope.  They look like they would be within functional 

area seven, application service provider, and they were 
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not explicitly called out.  So we're just trying to 

confirm that they are indeed a part of the scope of what 

you're addressing. 

  MR. EVANS:  The service center, the software 

that's being leveraged? 

  MR. CORNELIUS:  Yes. 

  MR. EVANS:  Okay.  So we have in-house software 

that's being -- in this case -- is it Oracle CRM? 

  MR. CORNELIUS:  Right.  So the, the support of 

that solution, would that be within the scope of this, 

people to support that? 

  MR. MUNIASAMY:  Yes.  That will be within the 

scope.  But right now I don't think we've put any RFR for 

that, which is a problem that may come up later. 

  MR. CORNELIUS:  Okay.  Thank you. 

  MR. JACOBS:  Yes. 

  MS. ABBOTT:  Hi.  Rossalyn Abbott, Exceed 

Corporation.  And I have a question related to teaming.  

If teaming won't be allowed on the IDIQ contract would it 

be allowed on the task orders?  Understanding that you 

said you need to get back to the -- on teaming questions, 
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just wanted to add that as well.  So consideration for 

teaming on task orders. 

  MR. JACOBS:  Okay.  So we'll add that as the 

second part of that question. 

  MR. EVANS:  Yeah. 

  MR. JACOBS:  Thank you. 

  Yes. 

  MR. VALDIVIESO:  Luis from Gantech again.  Real 

quick question.  42 it says -- I just want to make sure 

I'm clear.  Excel document that we send you want that, 

our financials there, but in the hard copy CD you want 

that information redacted. 

  MR. JACOBS:  Yes, if, yeah, yes.  The 

information if you deem confidential, redact it. 

  MR. VALDIVIESO:  Okay.   

  MS. DRAVIDA:  I have a question.  It's on page 

48, Section 5.4.  There's a statement that there are 

maximum prices MHBE will pay for all proposed labor 

categories.  And I know a number of, of states and local 

agencies do post NTE sheets or not to exceed rate sheets.    

I didn't see one online.  Is, is that available?  In 
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response to there being certain limits that MHBE would 

like to set for certain positions. 

  MR. MUNIASAMY:  For, you mean for the specific 

vendors? 

  MS. DRAVIDA:  Across the, across the board. 

  MR. JACOBS:  The labor rates. 

  MS. DRAVIDA:  Correct.  Is there a standard 

that we should apply, I guess? 

  MR. MUNIASAMY:  Just let me understand your 

question right. 

  MS. DRAVIDA:  Okay. 

  MR. MUNIASAMY:  So you want to know the entire 

NTE for given vendor?  Is that what you're asking? 

  MS. DRAVIDA:  No.  Let, let me -- yeah, so some 

local agencies, for example, DC, often will post for all 

of its labor categories a not to exceed rate, and it 

simply says don't even bother submitting a rate above 

this number.  And, you know, because we, we won't even 

look at you, which is, which is fair, right.  But it 

gives us all a sense of -- 

  MR. MUNIASAMY:  Oh, I got your point. 
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  MS. DRAVIDA:  -- a set value.  So I was 

wondering if that might be something that's referenced 

here. 

  MR. MUNIASAMY:  Actually here we are not doing 

in that fashion. 

  MS. DRAVIDA:  Okay. 

  MR. MUNIASAMY:  What we are doing is we are -- 

because it's going to be like if you are competent you're 

-- so for example you have like for the same level that 

will be a X and somebody else has a Y. 

  MS. DRAVIDA:  Right. 

  MR. MUNIASAMY:  So based on -- we would put the 

NTE cap on that.  The X multiplied by 12 months. 

  MS. DRAVIDA:  Got you. 

  MR. MUNIASAMY:  So that is -- for the NTE. 

  MS. DRAVIDA:  So to that these are our maximum 

rates -- 

  MR. MUNIASAMY:  Yes. 

  MS. DRAVIDA: -- for an indefinite period for 

indefinite quantity.  So we may not be fully clear on 

some of the specialized technologies that may come out in 
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RFRs.  So you would like us to, to just sort of do our 

best to give you the highest value with, within that? 

  MR. MUNIASAMY:  Yes.  You know like this is 

something -- 

  MS. DRAVIDA:  Fair enough.  I -- 

  (Simultaneous comments.) 

  MR. MUNIASAMY:  I want to know if I'm running a 

company I want like more profit margin. 

  MS. DRAVIDA:  Yeah. 

  MR. MUNIASAMY:  So it's like difference -- 

  MS. DRAVIDA:  Want to give you the best 

candidate, so -- 

  MR. MUNIASAMY:  -- how to do best judgment, do 

your market analysis and submit your rates.  It is a 

purely going to be based on the -- 

  MS. DRAVIDA:  Okay, sir.  Thank you. 

  MR. MUNIASAMY:  No problem. 

  MR. JACOBS:  Sure. 

  Yes, sir. 

  UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  There's language in the 

RFP talking about warranty work and so forth, but it 
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wasn't clear when that warranty work might be requested.  

Is it after the system has been tested and put into 

production or is it warranty work actually -- requested 

during normal testing process. 

  MR. MUNIASAMY:  Well, the warranty starts after 

the -- 

  UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Okay.   

  MR. MUNIASAMY:  Is that answer?  I am -- our 

apologies for the people standing in the behind.  In case 

if you have any specific questions, please move forward 

or even take a -- some spot in the back.  Sorry about 

that.   

  MR. JACOBS:  You can come up to the space over 

here, if you'd like, particularly if you have questions. 

  Yes, sir. 

  MR. PRICE:  Curtis Price with Angara (ph.).  

Could you, could you review what makes up the 25 pages?  

For instance does the insurance documents, past 

performance?   

  MR. EVANS:  So the, specifically to the 

insurance documents we've discussed and determined that 
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the proof of insurance can be submitted separately within 

10 days of contract award.  So that does not have to be 

included as part of your 25 pages.  The past performance 

does. 

  MS. DRAVIDA:  I'm sorry.  Would you clarify?  

So that means that you actually do not need the proof of 

insurance in the submission at all unless there's an 

award? 

  MR. EVANS:  Correct. 

  MR. JACOBS:  Correct. 

  MS. DRAVIDA:  Okay.  Thank you. 

  MR. JACOBS:  Yes, sir. 

  UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  This question -- and 

then the start date.  So June 17th, the, the contract 

award date.   So the resumes that -- as part of the RFR, 

those candidates will be -- or when, when will this 

action -- 17th and 7, July 1st or what is the process? 

  MR. EVANS:  We'll have to do the, we're going 

to have to do the interviews between the 26th of May and 

the 17th of June. 

  UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Okay.  And is there a 
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timeframe that you have in your mind in terms of 

interview and then getting back to the, the companies? 

  MR. EVANS:  As fast as possible. 

  UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Okay. 

  MR. MUNIASAMY:  Yes, the beginning of June we 

will -- you like who are the people we want to -- so that 

you can schedule interview within the next 10 days.  So 

that will help us out.  We need to tell you by mid of 

June so that in case people are already working 

somewhere, they will have ample time to --  

  MR. LESLIE:  Yeah, I'm David Leslie from Koniag 

Services.  I have a question about kind of the process 

after award.  You currently have an incumbent contractor 

or contracts, contractors doing this work, and they have 

resumes for the positions that are being requested.  

Those of us who are not doing this work have to submit 

resumes, and then you're going to do an interview.  And 

my experience so far on interviews is that the people who 

are interviewed and hired are those who know best the 

current systems.  So that puts all of us who are not 

incumbents at a very high competitive disadvantage.  How 
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do you propose to offset that in the interview process? 

  MR. EVANS:  Would you like -- 

  MR. MUNIASAMY:  All right, I will take it, yes. 

  UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  It's a fair -- 

  MR. LESLIE:  It also precludes, it also 

precludes which in the federal space happens all the 

time, a award winner being able to contact incumbent 

personnel and bring them onboard in a transition phase.  

And in federal procurement it's done all the time, and 

you have to address how you would do transition. 

  MR. MUNIASAMY:  Okay.  It's a very valid point.  

This is, this is how the -- process is going to work.  So 

fundamentally in case if I were to find a better -- 

definitely we are going to hire them out.  So it is going 

to be like a proper time to -- so to answer your 

question, yes, in case if there is a candidate who is 

working this project is coming for an interview will have 

much better knowledge than a new candidate.  So it is -- 

depend on if I'm going to -- and turn things around, you 

know.   These are some of the exercises we will be going 

through and then hiring it.  So really doesn't matter.  
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Like sometimes there is a different type -- who has a 

better experience in the process and building the system.  

There are so many other things.  So we are, we have a 

specific criteria to go through the interview process and 

hire the right candidate.  So if the new people are good, 

is good. 

  MR. JACOBS:  Yes, sir. 

  MR. BURRA:  Vish Burra from International 

Software Systems.  I wanted to know if the proposed staff 

or personnel need any type of security clearances or 

anything, any visa requirements, something like that? 

  MR. MUNIASAMY:  Fundamentally it is not 

required.  The bottom line here is as long as the vendor 

you are doing some background check.  Background check is 

very important.  We don't want to, you know, bring 

somebody who is, doesn't have the public trust kind of 

clearance.  So, you know, like -- company does a 

background check for the past five years or 10 years.  

Some company does for 10 years.  Some company does for 

like five years.  Want to make sure the candidate is very 

genuine and if he lives in this country he's authorized 
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to do the work, this kind of stuff. 

  Yes, please. 

  MR. MARCELL:  Mike from K2 again.  If we're 

submitting on all the areas, would you be considering us 

in areas that we potentially would be weak in where we 

wouldn't win, would we be able in other areas or would 

you throw the entire contract out? 

  MR. MUNIASAMY:  No.  We are not going to throw 

the entire contract out. 

  MR. MARCELL:  I'm sorry.  My proposal, not -- 

  MR. MUNIASAMY:  So fundamentally, you know, the 

purpose of this entire -- to make sure all 10 areas, I 

don't think any one company is really going to be strong.  

But -- the candidates, yes, you do this business.  

Sometimes you will get the right candidates, sometimes 

you may not.  So if you have any -- some, let us say some 

security specialist is required.  Some company does a 

very poor -- that is the primary.  The rest of the thing 

is like if it comes it comes, if not, not.  So we are not 

going to eliminate probably any of the vendors because of 

that risk. 

FREE STATE REPORTING, INC. 
Court Reporting  Transcription 

D.C. Area 301-261-1902 
Balt. & Annap. 410-974-0947 



                                                   48                           

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

 

 

  MS. DRAVIDA:  As a follow-up to that, Jessica 

Dravida from Dravida Consulting.  Is in the case that 

let's say you submit for function area 1, 2, 3, just and 

you, you deem that functional area three, you know, not 

so strong.  We don't want to approve you for three.  Just 

to clarify, your submission for functional areas one and 

two may still be approved? 

  MR. MUNIASAMY:  That's correct.  

  MS. DRAVIDA:  Okay.  Thank you. 

  MR. JACOBS:  Hand over there in the back. 

  MS. LIPPMAN:  Yeah, Anne with ALTEK.  Your -- 

going back to your incumbents.  Are you unhappy with your 

incumbents?  And, if so, if you could tell me, tell us 

why. 

  MR. EVANS:  The formal answer is we are not 

unhappy with our incumbents. 

  MR. JACOBS:  We love everybody. 

  MS. LIPPMAN:  Okay. 

  MR. EVANS:  This is the open bid process we're 

going through in filling the positions. 

  MR. MUNIASAMY:  And we are trying to see is 
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there anywhere we can exceed or we can just -- like do 

better.  It is a continuous -- process.  As soon as, you 

know, that some contract comes to an end we are just 

trying to -- with the situation and see what we can do 

best. 

  MS. LIPPMAN:  So no key point like pricing or 

the quality?  You like all, all of that from your 

incumbent? 

  MR. MUNIASAMY:  Yes.  It is, it is a kind of 

like at that time the evaluation is different.  Now the 

evaluation is going to be different.  So bottom line is 

we are trying to see like how we can continuously 

improve. 

  MR. EVANS:  And if I may, returning to the 

question about incumbents over on this side.  A new set 

of eyes can be an advantage on the software systems that 

we're working with.  So from that standpoint the 

incumbents know the system better, but the processes that 

they're running through aren't going to be different 

processes than someone else would be running through.  I 

mean so a new set of eyes could definitely be a new way 
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of looking at things, and a new way of taking advantage 

of the system and bringing in more value. 

  MR. JACOBS:  Yes, sir. 

  MR. MUNIASAMY:  The corner. 

  UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Clarifying question on 

the award process.  So company-wide, it's on all 10 

functional areas.  Does the review say that this company 

is technically competent or technically awarded in every 

area they respond or are you guys going to select certain 

functional areas by a specific company?  And that's one 

question.  And the second question with that, will they 

be -- is there a maximum number of companies that you're 

looking to be award for any one functional area or not? 

  MR. EVANS:  Okay.  So the, the technical and 

financial proposals are for us to evaluate that the 

company itself is valid as a submission for the RFRs and 

for the positions.  The award of the positions is 

separate.  So we may take, for example, if we've got 

seven testers out there, we may take two from you and 

three from you and one for you and spread them out or we 

may take all seven from a given provider if they're all 
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spectacular.  Or, you know, we may take testers and PMs 

from you and someone else.  There's, I mean we may take 

one company, one body for every individual position and 

have 10 different companies.  However -- 

  UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  But just to clarify one 

more time. Will a company be notified that, yes, you are 

technically awarded or technically qualified for a 

particular function area or not?  Take the RFRs aside. 

  MR. EVANS:  I think we'll -- I don't think 

we're going to limit it to the particular area.  We're 

either going to call you as, as valid as a company to 

submit to this project or not. 

  UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Okay.  You're valid 

though for only the areas that you responded to.   

Because the, the dilemma you have is that you required us 

to respond to certain functional areas.  You gave us that 

option, but then you wanted our rates for every category. 

  MR. EVANS:  Right. 

  UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  So the submission of the 

rates for every category make us qualified for any 

functional area whether we responded to it technically or 
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not? 

  MR. EVANS:  Yes. 

  UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Okay.   

  MR. MUNIASAMY:  Yes, please. 

  UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  I have a question about 

the Attachment G.  It says that -- the RFP says that the 

recommended awardee needs to return this attachment with 

the technical proposal.  However, at the time of 

submission I mean we won't be necessarily the recommended 

awardee.  So does Attachment G go with the submittal or 

does that come later on after we've won? 

  MR. EVANS:  I'm sorry.  Which, which -- can you 

tell me which one that is -- I don't. 

  UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Attachment G. 

  MR. EVANS:  Yes.  The subject area. 

  UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Federal funds 

requirements and restrictions.  RFP says that, that the 

recommended awardee needs to send that in, but we won't 

necessarily be a recommended awardee until after -- 

  MR. JACOBS:  They notify -- 

  UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  -- we get notified that 
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we win.  So do you want it -- so the question I have is 

do you want us to send it after we win it or do you want 

Attachment G to be sent -- 

  MR. JACOBS:  With the response. 

  UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  -- with the response. 

  MR. JACOBS:  Okay.  We'll confirm that for you. 

  UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Okay. 

  MS. DUMONT:  Excuse me.  Debra Dumont, ZDAAS, 

again.  On page 49 it says Attachment G -- it's a list of 

the attachments, and it is to the -- page 49. 

  MR. JACOBS:  Got you.  Thank you and thank you. 

  Yes, sir. 

  UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  The -- for the language 

about the invoicing and submitting a monthly report that 

goes with the invoice.  Can you provide example of the 

monthly report that you normally want to see associated 

with this contract so we have an idea of the level of 

effort involved in that?  And is the preparation of a 

monthly report in itself a billable item or is that 

something we -- absorb -- 

  MR. MUNIASAMY:  Preparation of monthly report 
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is not a billable item.  So we can provide a sample.  For 

example if I am submitting an invoice for $34,000, I'll 

just forward a list of things.  These are the very exact 

duties I performed in the past 160 hours -- so just, you 

know, like we want to list the -- duties so that in 

future if somebody is trying to find out like okay this 

invoice has been paid.  What are the various -- 

  Yes, please. 

  UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  I want to clarify a 

point that the gentleman in the back asked earlier.  He 

said since we're submitting rates for every labor 

category will we be eligible for every functional area 

even if we didn't submit a technical in that functional 

area, and you said yes, but that's not the way I read the 

RFP.  You can qualify for the functional area by 

providing a technical response to that functional area, 

correct?  If you don't do a technical response how can 

you get evaluated for that functional area? 

  MR. MUNIASAMY:  You are right.  I agree with 

you probably like we'll just restate that.  You are 

right.  So fundamentally while you are submitting the 
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response, you know, like we want to make sure like -- 

have the technical proposal for all the categories 

whatever you are submitting. 

  UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  So then to clarify one 

more time, why the requirement then for rates for every 

labor category?  I mean this goes back to -- 

questionnaire I think you -- said your counsel suggested 

that you guys get rates for every labor category, but if 

a particular company is not responding to certain labor 

categories, why would their information be need to be 

made aware of? 

  UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  I think I know that from 

when we were on the CATS.  If you -- 

  (Simultaneous comments.) 

  UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Can I just hear from -- 

  UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Oh, okay. 

  MR. EVANS:  You, you may have more experience  

on -- 

  UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Well, it comes down to 

then each proposer is choosing which labor category is 

for a certain functional area.  So you may say I only 
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need these eight.  I may say I need these 12.  So it's 

not a equal evaluation.  So they force everybody to price 

everything whether you're going to use it or not. 

  UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  So we'll get that 

officially in writing though from Maryland Procurement? 

  MR. JACOBS:  Yeah.  We'll, we'll review your 

questions regarding the labor rates and the submission 

requirements, and we'll, we'll post that question for 

you.  I think we totally understand your question and 

concern. 

  MR. EVANS:  Did you, did you post that question 

to -- 

  UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Maybe not officially, 

but I guess we can. 

  MR. JACOBS:  Yes, please, yes. 

  MR. EVANS:  That will make it a lot easier. 

  MR. JACOBS:  Yes.  Yes, sir, Mr. Price. 

  MR. PRICE:  Curtis Price.  Just to go back to 

my original question.  I'm still a little fuzzy on the 

page count because of -- if you take the proof of 

financial stability there are six items in there, and if 
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we propose for 10 functional areas that could be 10, 10 

pages for past performance, that's at 16.  Two pages for 

executive summary is 18, which doesn't leave a lot of 

pages to give you a, an adequate response for a technical 

proposal.  Could the proof of financial stability be 

moved over to the financial section?  It is after all 

finance? 

  MR. EVANS:  I think the executive is separate 

isn't it?  The executive that you -- does it count to the 

25? 

  MS. DRAVIDA:  It counts.  But you are only 

required two of the items in the financial section.  Is 

that correct? 

  UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Two out of the six. 

  MS. DRAVIDA:  Two out of the six.  Is that a 

correct reading of that section? 

  MR. EVANS:  I believe you're right. 

  MR. PRICE:  Yeah, it's, it's two, but -- 

  MS. DRAVIDA:  Section 4.1.1.4. 

  MR. EVANS:  Right, right. 

  MR. MARCELL:  And it poses a challenge if 
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you're bidding on all sections versus just one, right.  

Because that can give you a really big -- response to one 

section --  

  MR. EVANS:  Well, I believe the goal for the, 

the page limit was to make it succinct.  That's the best 

answer I can give you on that. 

  MR. PRICE:  So I'm sorry.  What was the answer? 

  MR. JACOBS:  Our -- the goal for the page 

count, I know it's, I know it presses you based on what 

you want, what you want and desire to put into your 

solicitation, to your response.  But we're really trying 

to be succinct on what we're receiving from the 

prospective offerors. 

  MS. LAKE:  Hi.  Susan Lake from TriTech 

Enterprise Systems. 

  MR. JACOBS:  Hi, Ms. Lake. 

  MS. LAKE:  Two questions.  The first one quick 

and easy.  Do you require or would you prefer to see 

letters of intent for the resumes that are submitted for 

the candidate if they're not currently -- 

  MR. EVANS:  So the, the RFR has asked for 
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signatures from the actual candidates. 

  MS. LAKE:  Okay.  So you -- so just a separate 

signature?  Doesn't have to be any formal document? 

  MR. JACOBS:  Not, not a document. 

  MS. LAKE:  Right.  Second question.  So I just, 

again, I know this has been hit from a couple different 

angles. 

  MR. JACOBS:  That's fine. 

  MS. LAKE:  We are, we are submitting a response 

to 10 different functional areas an optionally the 

additionally RFRs.  So if we're selected as one of the 

master contractors for the 10 functional areas, at this 

time around we haven't submitted any RFRs, do you have a 

forecast or anticipated volume of what's going to be 

coming down the pike beyond that?  I guess I'm not -- 

  MR. EVANS:  We -- I don't think we have that 

forecast right now, but the, but there's possibilities.  

I mean we know that our needs are going to sort of 

fluctuate over time.  So and whether they fall in this or 

some other area.  But if you, if you get awarded but you 

don't put in an RFR or you don't put in resumes, you're, 
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you're still valid for work in the future under this -- 

  MS. LAKE:  But right now we don't know if we 

don't submit on these RFRs, we don't know when the next 

opportunity would be.  Is that -- am I understanding that 

correct? 

  MR. MUNIASAMY:  That is correct.   So right now 

there's a lot of, you know, like what is a new, what is 

going to come up, and we cannot commit based on the 

budget, but we do have like a lot of scope of work to be 

increased in this agency. 

  MS. LAKE:  Okay, all right, thank you. 

  MR. JACOBS:  Any additional questions? 

  MR. PRICE:  Yeah, one last question. 

  MR. JACOBS:  Sure, Mr. Price. 

  MR. PRICE:  Do you have a -- Curtis Price.  Do 

you have an idea of how many positions you're looking to 

fill? 

  MR. MUNIASAMY:  Right now? 

  MR. PRICE:  Yes. 

  MR. MUNIASAMY:  Right now -- 

  MR. PRICE:  Off of the -- 
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  MR. MUNIASAMY:  I think there's a 13 or 14 

positions. 

  MR. PRICE:  Pardon? 

  MR. EVANS:  13 or 14 positions. 

  MR. JACOBS:  13 or 14. 

  MR. EVANS:  So if you look at the, all of the 

RFRs -- 

  MS. DRAVIDA:  17. 

  MR. EVANS:  -- and add them up.  17? 

  MS. DRAVIDA:  I think it's --  

  MR. EVANS:  Seven testers, one test lead, 

several analysts. 

  MS. DRAVIDA:  17. 

  UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  How about this idea?  

The RFRs because of the intense recruiting effort and the 

signature required and the templates that we have to, you 

know, put them in, if we responded to the technical 

proposal and you deem that this is the company that's 

capable of recruiting these types of people, we could be 

actually recruiting for those RFRs while you're making 

the decision who you want to bring in since they're real 
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people and real bodies that we have to produce for -- so 

you -- will it be to the company's detriment to not 

submit the RFRs right away but be, be telling you in the 

technical proposal we're working on these? 

  MR. MUNIASAMY:  That -- it will be difficult 

for us to evaluate.  Because if you're really seeing like  

-- I did not expect so many vendors today.  So if you're 

really seeing through this even with the -- positions we 

have like a lot of work to do.  So I would prefer -- can 

submit that those -- also along with the RFR that will be 

really great.  So -- and still we want to meet the 

deadline of July 1st at this point. 

  MR. EVANS:  I have a possible solution, but 

I'll talk with you offline about it instead of announcing 

it all here. 

  MR. MUNIASAMY:  Yes, please. 

  MR. JACOBS:  Yes, sir. 

  UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  I'd like to ask also 

that the State consider instead of a 25-page overall 

limit a smaller limit per technical area.  So if I'm 

proposing 10 technical areas I'm not as constrained as 
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somebody who is only proposing three and can expand on 

their write-up.  We can still say succinct but just make 

it per technical area. 

  MR. MUNIASAMY:  So let me ask you this general 

question.  This type of -- this is not a big -- and what 

you, what is the limit you want to extend?  Anybody has 

any thoughts? 

  MR. MARCELL:  Leave it right where it is. 

  UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Yes. 

  UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Yeah.  I mean I think 

I'm all for that idea.  That's a great idea -- 

  (Simultaneous comments.) 

  UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  -- would be just to 

state a page or two pages per technical functional 

response.  So you have a -- you're going to respond to 

one functional response then you get two pages. 

  MR. MUNIASAMY:  Yes, please. 

  MR. LESLIE:  This is David from Koniag 

Services.  I think, and I'm kind of giving away the farm 

here, but if you read the RFP there is not a requirement 

for a technical response on doing the work.  They will 
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evaluate technical capability through past performance, 

and that's the way you're supposed to do it.  Now I just 

gave away a lot, you know, people are going to sit there 

and write technical responses on how they're going to 

paint the walls.  They're not asking for that.  They're 

asking you to prove that you have painted a wall. 

  MS. MCBETH:  Thank you. 

  MR. MUNIASAMY:  Thank you.  Really, because I 

hear that same question like from multiple directions.  

So that is why I really want to hear from you folks like 

anybody has any -- so -- the 25 pages -- okay, thank you. 

  MS. DUMONT:  Deborah Dumont from ZDAAS.  And to 

tag onto the give away the farm, past performance can 

encompass 10 functional areas, one past performance. 

  MR. EVANS:  Right, yes.  It states that in the 

RFP. 

  MS. DUMONT:  So you don't have to have 10 kinds 

of performances. 

  MR. EVANS:  Correct.  It states in the RFP that 

you can cover multiple areas in one past performance. 

  MR. MUNIASAMY:  Good.  any other questions?  
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  UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Yes. 

  MR. MUNIASAMY:  Yes, please. 

  UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  To clarify on the past 

performance.  I can include it one time and in the other 

ones say refer to this past performance, so I don't have 

two pages, two pages, two pages? 

  UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Sure. 

  MR. EVANS:  As long as it is relevant. 

  UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Okay.   

  MR. JACOBS:  Any other questions?   

  Any additional comments, Susan, Jon? 

  I'd like to thank everyone for coming.  If you 

have business cards, please feel free to leave them at 

the back table there.  If you have not signed in, if you 

could print your name on the sign-in sheets in the back, 

in the front of the room by the door.  Depends on where 

you're at, right?  Clarifying instructions.  The record 

is now closed. 

  (Whereupon, the Pre-Proposal Conference 

concluded at 11:05 a.m., on May 18, 2015.) 
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